

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
HOUSTON DIVISION

United States Court
Southern District of Texas
FILED

FEB 15 2018

David J. Bradley, Clerk of Court

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

vs.

JASON DANIEL GANDY

§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§

CRIMINAL NO. 12-503SS

CRIMINAL INDICTMENT

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

INTRODUCTION

At all times material to this Indictment:

1. The term "minor" is defined, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256(1), as "any person under the age of eighteen years."

2. The term "child pornography", for purposes of this Indictment, is defined, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256(8)(A), as:

"any visual depiction, including any photograph, film, video, picture, or computer or computer-generated image or picture, whether made or produced by electronic, mechanical, or other means, of sexually explicit conduct, where -

(A) the production of such visual depiction involves the use of a minor engaged in sexually explicit conduct;

3. The term "sexually explicit conduct" is defined, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256(2), as any:

"actual or simulated -

- (i) sexual intercourse, including genital [to] genital, oral [to] genital, anal [to] genital, or oral [to] anal, whether between persons of the same or opposite sex, [or]
- (ii) bestiality; [or]
- (iii) masturbation; [or]
- (iv) sadistic or masochistic abuse; or
- (v) [the] lascivious exhibition of the genitals or pubic area of any person."

4. The term "computer" is defined, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2256(6) and

1030(e)(1), as any:

"electronic, magnetic, optical, electrochemical, or other high speed data processing device performing logical, arithmetic, or storage functions, and includes any data storage facility or communications facility directly related to or operating in conjunction with such device, but such term does not include an automated typewriter or typesetter, a portable hand held calculator or other similar device."

5. The term "producing" is defined, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256(3), as:

"producing, directing, manufacturing, issuing, publishing or advertising," and includes downloading images from another source, buy using materials, including a computer or parts thereof.

6. The term "visual depiction" is defined, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256(5), as including, but is not limited to, any:

"undeveloped film and videotape, and data stored on computer disk or by electronic means which is capable of conversion into a visual image."

COUNT ONE
Transportation of Minors

On or about July 19, 2012, in the Southern District of Texas and elsewhere,

JASON DANIEL GANDY,

defendant herein, knowingly transported Minor Victim # 1, who had not attained the age of 18

years, in interstate commerce and foreign commerce, from the State of Texas to the United Kingdom, with the intent that Minor Victim #1 engage in prostitution and other sexual activity for which any person could be charged with a criminal offense.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2423(a).

COUNT TWO
Sexual Exploitation of Children

On or between April 1, 2012 and July 18, 2012, within the Southern District of Texas,

JASON DANIEL GANDY,

defendant herein, did attempt to and did employ, use, persuade, induce, entice and coerce a minor, namely Minor Victim # 1, to engage in any sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual depiction of such conduct, and such visual depiction was transmitted using any means and facility of interstate or foreign commerce, and the visual depiction was produced using materials that had been mailed, shipped and transported in or affecting interstate and foreign commerce. *Watch KV interra videos on 7-20-12, 7-26-12 where he is shown illegally deleting evidence & coerced to make up a plausible lie @ trial. (He's Never Seen & Proves it by telling Johnson I don't own any Blue Shirts, even asking him 2 smoke)*

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2251(a) & (e). *See footnote 65 in U.S. Ct of Appeals for Dist of Columbia Circuit - 540 F.2d 956 (D.C. Cir 1978) decided 7-21-78*

COUNT THREE
Transportation of Child Pornography

On or about July 19, 2012, in the Southern District of Texas and elsewhere,

JASON DANIEL GANDY,

defendant herein, knowingly transported any child pornography, as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 2256(8), using any means and facility of interstate and foreign commerce.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2252A(a)(1) and (b).

(a) Any person who -

(1) knowingly mails, or transports or ships using any means or facility of interstate or

commerce, or in or affecting interstate or foreign commerce, including by computer, child pornography.

COUNT FOUR

#2 Same

Sex Trafficking of Minors

Whoever violates, or attempts or conspires to violate, paragraph (1), (2), (3), (4), or (6) of Subsection (a) shall be fined under this title, imprisoned not less than 5 years, but Texas and elsewhere, if such person has a prior conviction under this chapter [18 USC 2251 et seq., chapter 18A, or chapter 17 [18 USC 1460 et seq., 2241 et seq., or 2421, or under chapter 17 of

JASON GANDY,

to aggravated sex abuse, or knowing sex act conduct involving a minor, or the production, possession, receipt, distribution, shipment, or transportation of L.P., for sex traff of child, such person shall be imprisoned, transported, provided, obtained, advertised, maintained, patronized, and solicited by any means a

18 yrs or more than 40 yrs.

person, namely a minor male known as Minor Victim #1, who had attained the age of 14, but

was under 18, knowing and in reckless disregard of the fact that Minor Victim #1 had not

attained that age of 18 years and would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act, and

benefitted financially and by receiving anything of value from participation in a venture which

has engaged in recruiting, enticing, harboring, transporting, providing, obtaining, advertising,

maintaining, patronizing, and soliciting by any means Minor Victim #1 knowing and in reckless

disregard of the fact that Minor Victim #1 had not attained the age of 18 years and would be

caused to engage in a commercial sex act.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1591(a), (b) and 2.

COUNT FIVE

Sex Trafficking of Minors

D.V. 18 in 06's Dec. 28th Turns 19

From on or about November 1, 2006, through December 27, 2006, in the

Southern District of Texas and elsewhere.

JASON GANDY,

defendants herein, in and affecting interstate commerce, knowingly recruited, enticed, harbored, transported, provided, obtained, advertised, maintained, patronized, and solicited by any means a person, namely a minor male known as Minor Victim #2, who had attained the age of 14, but was under 18, knowing and in reckless disregard of the fact that Minor Victim #2 had not attained that age of 18 years and would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act, and benefitted financially and by receiving anything of value from participation in a venture which has engaged in recruiting, enticing, harboring, transporting, providing, obtaining, advertising, maintaining, patronizing and soliciting by any means Minor Victim #2 knowing and in reckless disregard of the fact that Minor Victim #2 had not attained the age of 18 years and would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1591(a), (b) and 2.

COUNT SIX
Sex Trafficking of Minors

K.D.

No \$ No Messages
Never Met Any of my clients

From on or about June 1, 2005, through August 31, 2005, in the Southern District of Texas and elsewhere,

JASON GANDY,

defendants herein, in and affecting interstate commerce, attempted to knowingly recruit, entice, harbor, transport, provide, obtain, advertise, maintain, patronize and solicit by any means a person, namely a minor male known as Minor Victim #3, who had attained the age of 14, but was under 18, knowing and in reckless disregard of the fact that Minor Victim #3 had not attained that age of 18 years and would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act, and

attempted to benefit financially and by receiving anything of value from participation in a venture which attempted to engage in recruiting, enticing, harboring, transporting, providing, obtaining, advertising, maintaining, patronizing, and soliciting by any means Minor Victim #3 knowing and in reckless disregard of the fact that Minor Victim #3 had not attained the age of 18 years and would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1591(a), (b) and 2.

COUNT SEVEN
Sex Trafficking of Minors

Bought 1701 Sylvia Dr. 7874
Austin House in Oct

From on or about August 1, 2007, through November 31, 2007, in the Southern
District of Texas and elsewhere, S.D. ↑ Amsterdam ↑

JASON GANDY,

defendants herein, in and affecting interstate commerce, attempted to knowingly recruit, entice, harbor, transport, provide, obtain, advertise, maintain, patronize and solicit by any means a person, namely a minor male known as Minor Victim #4, who had attained the age of 14, but was under 18, knowing and in reckless disregard of the fact that Minor Victim #4 had not attained that age of 18 years and would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act, and attempted to benefit financially and by receiving anything of value from participation in a venture which attempted to engage in recruiting, enticing, harboring, transporting, providing, obtaining, advertising, maintaining, patronizing, and soliciting by any means Minor Victim #4 knowing and in reckless disregard of the fact that Minor Victim #4 had not attained the age of 18 years and would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1591(a), (b) and 2.